170633.0323/a

LO 55

0

0

de	Oberfräse	Originalbetriebsanleitung	6
en	Router	Translation of the original operating instructions	20
fr	Défonceuse portative	Traduction de la notice d'emploi originale	33
it	Fresatrice verticale	Traduzione delle istruzioni per l'uso originali	47
nl	Bovenfrees	Vertaling van de originele gebruiksaanwijzing	61
es	Tupí de brazo superior	Traducción del manual de instrucciones original	74
fi	Yläjyrsin	Käännös alkuperäiskäyttöohjeesta	88
da	Overfræser	Oversættelse af den originale betjeningsveiledning	114
ru	Дисковая ручная пила	Перевод оригинальной инструкции поэксплуатации	127
pl	Frezarka górnowrzecionowa	Tłumaczenie oryginalnej instrukcji obsługi	141
cs	Horní frézka	Překlad původního provozního návodu	155
sl	Namizni rezkalnik	Prevod izvirnih navodil za uporabo	168
sk	Horná fréza	Originálny návod na používanie	181



MAF02340/a

WARNUNG

Lesen Sie alle Sicherheitshinweise und Anweisungen. Versäumnisse bei der Einhaltung der Sicherheitshinweise und Anweisungen können elektrischen Schlag, Brand und/oder schwere Verletzungen verursachen. Bewahren Sie alle Sicherheitshinweise und Anweisungen für die Zukunft auf.

WARNING

Please read all safety instructions and directions. Failure to comply with the safety instructions and directions can cause electric shock, fire and/or serious injuries. Please retain all safety instructions and directions for future reference.

AVERTISSEMENT

Veuillez lire toutes les consignes de sécurité et instructions. Tout non-respect des consignes de sécurité et instructions risque d'être à l'origine de décharges électriques, d'incendies et/ou de blessures graves. Conservez toutes les consignes et instructions pour pouvoir les relire à tout moment.

AVVERTENZA

Leggere tutte le avvertenze di sicurezza e le istruzioni. La mancanza del rispetto delle avvertenze di sicurezza e delle istruzioni possono causare scossa elettrica, incendio e/o gravi lesioni. Conservare tutte le avvertenze di sicurezza e le istruzioni per il futuro.

WAARSCHUWING

Lees alle veiligheidsaanwijzingen en instructies. Nalatigheid bij het naleven van de veiligheidsinstructies en aanwijzingen kan elektrische schok, brand en/of ernstige letsels veroorzaken. Bewaar alle veiligheidsaanwijzingen en instructies voor later gebruik.

ADVERTENCIA

Lea todas las indicaciones de seguridad e instrucciones. Si no se cumplen las indicaciones de seguridad e instrucciones, se pueden producir descargas eléctricas, incendios y/o lesiones graves. Guarde todas las indicaciones de seguridad e instrucciones para el futuro.

VAROITUS

Lue kaikki turvaohjeet ja käyttöohjeet. Laiminlyönti turvaohjeiden ja käyttöohjeiden noudattamisessa voi aiheuttaa sähköiskun, tulipalon ja/tai vakavia vammoja. Säilytä kaikki turvaohjeet ja käyttöohjeet tulevaisuuden varalle.

VARNING

Läs alla säkerhetsanvisningar och anvisningar. Underlåtenhet att följa säkerhetsanvisningar och anvisningar kan orsaka elstötar, brand och/eller allvarliga personskador. Behåll alla säkerhetsanvisningar och anvisning för framtida användning.

ADVARSEL

Læs alle sikkerhedshenvisninger og instruktioner. En manglende overholdelse af sikkerhedshenvisningerne og instruktionerne kan føre til elektrisk stød, brand og/eller alvorlige kvæstelser. Opbevar alle sikkerhedshenvisninger og instruktioner til fremtidig brug.

ПРЕДУПРЕЖДЕНИЕ

Прочитайте все правила и инструкции по технике безопасности. Несоблюдение этих правил и инструкций по технике безопасности может привести к поражению электрическим током, возгоранию и/или другим серьезным травмам. Сохраните все правила и инструкции по технике безопасности для дальнейшего использования.

OSTRZEŻENIE

Przeczytać wszystkie przepisy bezpieczeństwa i wskazówki. Zaniedbanie przestrzegania przepisów bezpieczeństwa i wskazówek może prowadzić do porażenia prądem, pożaru i/lub ciężkich zranień. Zachować wszystkie przepisy bezpieczeństwa i wskazówki na przyszłość.

UPOZORNĚNÍ

Přečtěte si všechna bezpečnostní upozornění a pokyny. Zanedbání bezpečnostních upozornění a pokynů může způsobit zásah elektrickým proudem, požár a/nebo vážná zranění. Všechna bezpečnostní upozornění a pokyny si ponechejte pro pozdější použití.

OPOZORILO

Preberite vsa varnostna opozorila in napotke. Neupoštevanje varnostnih opozoril in napotkov lahko povzroči udar električnega toka, požar in/ali hude telesne poškodbe. Vsa varnostna opozorila in napotke shranite za prihodnjo uporabo.

VÝSTRAHA

Prečítajte si bezpečnostné pokyny a inštrukcie. Nedbalé dodržiavanie bezpečnostných pokynov a inštrukcií môže spôsobiť úder elektrickým prúdom, požiar a/alebo ťažké zranenia. Uschovajte si všetky bezpečnostné pokyny a inštrukcie pre možné budúce použitie.



MAF02341/a



MAF02342/a



MAF02344/a



MAF02343/a



MAF02346/a



MAF02345/a



MAF02348/a





Table of Contents

1	Signs and symbols	21
2	Product information	21
2.1	Manufacturer's data	21
2.2	Machine identification	21
2.3	Technical data	
2.4	Emissions	22
2.5	Scope of supply	22
2.6	Safety devices	23
2.7	Use according to intended purpose	23
2.8	Residual risks	23
3	Safety instructions	23
4	Layout	25
4.1	Depicted components	25
5	Setting / adjustment	25
5.1	Mains connection	25
5.2	Chip and dust extraction	25
5.3	Clamping of milling cutters	25
6	Operation	
6.1	Initial operation	
6.2	Motor protection	
6.3	Speed adjustment	27
6.4	Milling depth adjustment	27
6.5	Work instructions	
7	Service and maintenance	29
7.1	Storage	29
8	Visual signal indication of operating condition	
9	Troubleshooting	
10	Optional accessories	
11	Exploded drawing and spare parts list	

1 Signs and symbols





This symbol is found in all places where you will find information for your safety.

Non-compliance with these instructions may result in very serious injuries.

This symbol indicates a potentially hazardous situation. If this situation is not avoided, the product or objects in its vicinity may get damaged.

This symbol indicates tips for the user and other useful information.

2 Product information

for machines with product no. 91A901, 91A920, 91A921

2.1 Manufacturer's data

MAFELL AG, Beffendorfer Straße 4, D-78727 Oberndorf / Neckar, Phone +49 (0)7423/812-0, Fax +49 (0)7423/812-218, e-mail: mafell@mafell.de

2.2 Machine identification

All details required for machine identification are available on the attached rating plate.



Protection class II

CE symbol to document compliance with the basic safety and health requirements according to Appendix I of the Machinery Directive.



For EU countries only

Do not dispose of electric tools together with household waste material! In accordance with the European directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment and transposition into national law, obsolete electrical tools must be collected separately and recycled in an environmentally-compatible manner.



To reduce the risk of injury, please read the operating instructions.

2.3 Technical data

Operating voltage	230 V~
Mains frequency	50 Hz
Input power continuous operation	1100 W
Idling speed normal operation	10000 - 24000 rpm
Idling speed throttled operation	10000 - 16500 rpm
Speed cooling run	8000 rpm
Milling depth adjustment with fine adjustment	0 - 55 mm
Revolving depth stop	3-stage
Tool fastening with collets	Ø 6 – 8 mm
Hose connector diameter	26 mm
Weight without mains cable	3.1 kg

2.4 Emissions

The declared noise emission values have been measured in accordance with DIN EN 62841-1 and may be used for comparing the tool with another and also in a preliminary assessment of exposure.



Danger

The noise emissions during actual use of the power tool can differ from the declared values depending on the ways in which the tool is used especially what kind of workpiece is processed.

Always wear hearing protection, even when the power tool ist running idle in addition to the trigger time!

2.4.1 Noise emission specifications

Noise emission values determined according to EN 62841-1 and EN 62841-2-17:

Sound pressure level	L _{PA} = 97 dB (A)
Uncertainty	K _{PA} = 3 dB (A)
Sound power level	L _{PA} = 89 dB (A)
Uncertainty	K _{PA} = 3 dB (A)

The noise level measurement was carried out with a new straight-edged milling cutter (Ø 12 mm).

2.4.2 Vibration specifications

The typical hand-arm vibration is 2.9 m/s^2 . The measuring inaccuracy is 1.5 m/s^2 .

2.5 Scope of supply

Router LO 55 complete with:

1 parallel guide fence

- 1 fine adjustment
- 1 chip deflector
- 1 template guide Ø 20 mm, Ø 30 mm, Ø 40 mm

1 adapter Leigh

- 1 extraction adapter
- 1 extraction adapter for guide rail
- 1 adapter sleeve 1/4" (only for item No. 91A921)
- 1 carrying case
- 1 operating manual
- 1 folder "Safety instructions"

2.6 Safety devices



Danger

These devices are required for the machine's safe operation and may not be removed or rendered inoperative.

Before operating the machine, check the safety devices for function and possible damage. Do not use the machine with missing or ineffective safety devices.

The machine is equipped with the following safety devices:

- large base plate
- Handles
- Index mechanisms
- Extraction adapter

2.7 Use according to intended purpose

The MAFELL router LO 55 is exclusively intended for milling of solid wood and panel materials such as chip board, coreboard, synthetic board, MDF board and Alucobond board using HSS or TCT milling cutters. Mineral materials (plasterboard or other dry construction materials) can also be milled. During milling, pay attention to best possible extraction and cleaning of the machine.

Any other use than described above is not permissible. The manufacturer cannot be held liable for any damage arising from such other use.

So as to use the machine as intended, comply with the operating, maintenance and repair instructions specified by Mafell.

2.8 Residual risks



Danger

Even if used in accordance with its intended purpose and despite conforming with the safety instructions, residual risks caused by the intended use that can lead to health consequences will always remain.

- Touching the running milling cutter or the clamping sleeve.
- Breakage of the milling cutter and risk of the milling cutter or pieces of the milling cutter being hurled away.
- Backlash of the machine or the workpiece.
- Backlash of the machine if the milling cutter gets stuck in the workpiece.
- Hearing can be impaired when working for long periods without ear protectors.
- Emission of harmful wood dusts during longer operation without extraction.

3 Safety instructions



Danger

Always observe the following safety instructions and the safety regulations applicable in the respective country of use!

General instructions:

- Children and adolescents must not operate this machine. This rule does not apply to young persons receiving training and being supervised by an expert.
- Never work without the protection devices prescribed for the respective operating sequence and do not make any changes to the machine that could impair safety.

- When operating the machine outdoors, use of an earth-leakage circuit-breaker is recommended.
- Damaged cables or plugs must be immediately replaced. Replacement may only be carried out by Mafell or an authorised MAFELL service workshop in order to avoid safety hazards.
- Avoid sharp bends in the cable. Especially when transporting and storing the machine, do not wind the cable around the machine.
- Only use milling cutters approved for manual feed.
- Only begin milling the workpiece when the milling cutter has achieved its full speed.
- Only put down the machine after switching off once the milling tool has come to a standstill.

Do not use:

- Cracked and misshapen milling cutters.
- Blunt milling cutters as they impose an excessive load on the motor.
- Milling cutters that are not suitable for the milling idling speed.

Instructions on the use of personal protective equipment:

- The noise pressure level at the ear generally exceeds 85 dB(A). Therefore wear ear protectors during work.
- Wear protective goggles during work.
- Wear a dust protection mask to prevent health damage.

Instructions on operation:

- Never reach into the working range of the milling cutter or underneath the base plate while the machine is running (danger of injury)!
- Firmly hold onto the machine with both hands at the handles provided already before switching it on.
- Provide a free and non-slip location with adequate lighting.
- The power plug must be pulled before replacing tools, making adjustments and repairing malfunctions (this also includes removing jammed chips).
- Examine the workpiece for foreign objects. Do not mill into metal parts, e.g. nails (danger of backlash).
- Before starting up, check the tight seat of the milling cutter and its correct running.

- Only use milling cutters approved for manual feed.
- Only use sharp and undamaged milling cutters. You will achieve improved surfaces and reduce the danger of backlash.
- Do not work on workpieces that are too small or too large for the capability of the machine.
- Only hold the power tool by the isolated handles, as the milling cutter could encounter and cut into its own connecting cable. The milling cutter contacting a "live" wire may render exposed metal parts of the tool "live" and could cause the operator to suffer an electric shock.
- Use clamps or another practical way to secure and support the workpiece to a stable support. Holding the workpiece only with your hand or against your body leaves it unstable and may lead to loss of control.
- Only begin milling the workpiece when the milling cutter has achieved its full speed.
- Always lead the connecting cable away from the machine to the rear while milling.
- An even feed during milling increases the life time of milling cutter and machine and achieves a clean milling pattern. Always mill in counter direction when machining edges.
- Only put down the machine after switching off once the milling cutter has come to a standstill or unscrew the clamping for the automatic reverse stroke on the machine. The machine is locked by releasing the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2).
- Milling cutters must be replaced in good time, as blunt milling cutters do not only increase the danger of backlash, but also place an unnecessary strain on the motor. The milling cutters must be clamped in accordance with chapter 5.3.
- The wood dust arising during milling impairs the necessary view and is partly injurious to health. If the machine is used for longer periods, it must therefore be connected to a chip extractor, e.g. a portable small extractor, if the work is not carried out outdoors or in a sufficiently ventilated room. The air velocity must be at least 20 m/s.

Instructions on service and maintenance:

- Regularly cleaning the machine, especially the adjusting devices and guides, constitutes an important safety factor.
- Only original MAFELL spare parts and accessories may be used. Otherwise the manufacturer will not accept any warranty claims and cannot be held liable.

4 Layout

4.1 Depicted components

(see Fig. 1 and 2)

- (1) Depth stop
- (2) Handle depth stop
- (3) Scale for the depth stop
- (4) Optical fibre speed adjustment
- (5) Speed push button
- (6) Speed reduction button
- (7) Power-on lock
- (8) Handle
- (9) Connecting cable
- (10) Switch trigger
- (11) Hose connector
- (12) Wing screw for support foot
- (13) Wing screw to fasten parallel guide fence, extraction adapter, chip deflector and template guides
- (14) Base plate
- (15) Revolving depth stop with grub screws
- (16) Fine adjustment depth stop
- (17) Cam lever
- (18) Column clamping lever
- (19) Handle

5 Setting / adjustment

5.1 Mains connection

Prior to commissioning make sure that the mains voltage complies with the operating voltage stated on the machine's rating plate.

5.2 Chip and dust extraction

Chips arising during milling as well as hazardous dusts arising from certain materials can be extracted by means of a commercial vacuum cleaner or with an external dust extractor.

To do so, attach the hose end of the vacuum cleaner to the hose connector 11 (see Fig. 2) of the base plate.

For improved extraction, an additional extraction adapter can be used (included in the scope of supply).

When working with a guide rail, an extraction adapter with height compensation (included in the scope of supply) is used.

When machining edges, a chip deflector which guides any arising chips away from the operator and improves extraction can be additionally mounted. The chip deflector is included in the scope of supply.

5.3 Clamping of milling cutters

The machine is as a standard equipped with a precision collect \emptyset 8 mm. It is possible to fasten milling cutters with corresponding shaft diameter in this collet.



Danger

It is imperative to pull the mains plug before replacing the milling cutter. Place the machine on its head or put it down on its side. Do not set the machine down on the side with the hose connector! This can result in damage to the workpiece.

Clamping

- Set the machine to the topmost position by actuating the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2).
- Open the tool clamping lever 20 (Fig. 3) completely downwards.
- Place the machine on its head or put it down on its side.
- Push the clean milling cutter shaft into the open collet up to the minimum clamping depth marking. If there is no marking for the minimum clamping depth, push at least three third of the shaft length of the milling cutter shaft into the open collet.

- Push the tool clamping lever 20 upwards to close it.
- Place the machine onto the base plate 14 (Fig. 1).

Unclamping

- Set the machine to the topmost position.
- Open the tool clamping lever 20 (Fig. 3) completely downwards.
- Place the machine on its head or put it down on its side.
- Remove the milling cutter from the collet.
- Push the tool clamping lever 20 upwards to close it.
- Place the machine onto the base plate 14 (Fig. 1).



A special application is at hand when working with guide sleeves of the dovetail jig (Leigh) and a comb jointer. If the internal diameter of the guide sleeve is smaller than the diameter of the milling cutter, the tool clamp must be opened as follows:

- Use a Ø 6 mm round bar (see Fig. 4) and push it through the bore in the fan housing.
- Turn the tool clamp until the round bar engages and blocks the tool clamp.
- Use a ring wrench or open end wrench AF19 to open the clamping sleeve by approx. 4 turns (clockwise rotation, left-hand thread).
- You can now remove the milling cutter from the collet or insert it into the collet.
- Re-tighten the clamping sleeve (anti-clockwise rotation, left-hand thread) and pull off the round bar.

6 Operation

6.1 Initial operation

Personnel entrusted to work with the machine must be made aware of the operating instructions, calling particular attention to the chapter "Safety instructions". 6.1.1 Switching on and off (see Fig. 1)



Danger

Only switch on the machine if the milling cutter has no contact with the workpiece and the tool clamping lever has engaged.

If the machine is switched on when it is in contact with the workpiece, the LED display lights up red (steady light). The machine switches off automatically. Release the switch trigger, remove the machine from the workpiece and press the switch trigger again.

If the mains plug is plugged in, the working range of the machine is illuminated as soon as it is moved.

When the machine is switched on, the LED display indicates the last speed set. The LED display lights up blue.

If the LED display lights up red, there is an error (see chapter 8).

Short operation

- Switching on: Press the switch trigger 10 (Fig. 1).
- Switching off: Release the switch trigger.

Continuous operation

- Switching on: Press the switch trigger 10 (Fig. 1) and the switch-on lock 7 in succession. The motor runs without pressure on the switch.
- Switching off: Press switch trigger 10 until the locking button disengages, then release the switch trigger.

6.2 Motor protection

Extreme and continuous overloading of the machine can lead to a motor failure. Before reaching a critical motor temperature, the motor is automatically switched off by the electronic temperature monitoring. When it is switched on again, the machine goes into cooling mode. The LED display flashes red. The bar value indicates the remaining cooling mode run time before the machine switches off automatically. When the machine has switched off, the LED display lights up red.

The machine is switched off due to overtemperature if the permissible motor temperature is exceeded while processing a workpiece. The LED display lights up red. When it is switched on again, the machine goes into cooling mode.

As an alternative, you can allow the machine to cool while it is switched off.

6.3 Speed adjustment

The router is equipped with an electronic speed control (see Fig. 1).

Speed normal operation

The milling cutter speed can be adjusted in 6 levels between 10000 and 24000 rpm via the speed button 5 (Fig. 1) below the LED display. When the machine is switched on with a soft start, the speed increases to the set final speed. The electronic levels are depicted in the following figure.



- (1) Normal operation
- (2) Throttled operation
- (3) Cooling run

Speed throttled operation

When processing end-grained wood surfaces, the speed can be lowered by 30%. To do so, press the speed reduction button 6 (Fig. 1). The LED display then flashes blue. The speed reduction is reset by pressing the speed reduction button again; the machine runs in normal operation again.

After a disconnection from the mains, the speed reduction is reset; the machine runs in normal operation again. The LED display lights up blue. When

the machine is switched on, the LED display indicates the last speed set.

Which electronic level must be set for which milling cutter \emptyset and material can be gathered from the following table.

Material (Recommended cutting)	Milling cutter Ø 3 – 14 mm	Milling cutter Ø 15 – 25 mm	Milling cutter Ø 26 – 35 mm
Hardwood (TCT / HSS)	6 - 4	5 - 3	3 - 1
Softwood (HSS / TCT)	6 - 5	6 - 3	4 - 1
Coated chip board (TCT)	6 - 5	6 - 3	4 - 2
Plastic (TCT)			



Danger

Do not work with the LO 55 if the electronic system is defective, as this may lead to excessive speeds. A faulty electronic system can be recognised by the lacking soft start, by a heightened idling noise or if no speed control is possible.

Speed cooling mode

If the machine is in cooling mode, the speed is automatically reduced to 8000 rpm.

Irrespective of the previously set speed, the spindle speed remains constantly at 8000 rpm.

The machine switches off when cooling mode is complete. When the machine is switched on again, it continues to run in normal operation.

6.4 Milling depth adjustment

6.4.1 Column clamping

The machine is equipped with a permanent column clamping.

By actuating the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2), the clamping is released and you can adjust the machine height.

Releasing the column clamping lever reactivates the clamping.

The column clamping can also be deactivated, for instance to drill rows of holes without having to constantly actuate the column clamping lever 18 (see Fig. 5). To do so, keep the column clamping lever 18 depressed. Insert an Allen wrench (2.5 mm) into the hexagon and turn 90° in clockwise direction.

Releasing is done in reverse order.

6.4.2 Revolving depth stop

The revolving depth stop 15 (Fig. 6) can be used to set three different milling depths. In addition, a fine adjustment of the highest and medium milling depth can be made via two grub screws 21.

To prevent a misadjustment of the milling depth in case of an accidental actuation of the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 1), the depth stop can be hooked into the revolving depth stop:

- First move the revolving depth stop 15 all the way to the left.
- Then turn the revolving depth stop 15 in anticlockwise direction.
- Now hook in the bar of the depth stop 1 (Fig. 1) by turning the revolving depth stop 15 in clockwise direction.

6.4.3 Adjustment of milling depth according to scale

The milling depth is set via the scale 3 (Fig. 1) for the depth stop.

- Clamp the milling cutter and place the machine onto the workpiece.
- Actuate the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2) and keep it depressed.
- Move the machine downwards until the milling cutter touches the workpiece surface. Now release the column clamping lever 18.
- Open the cam lever 17 (Fig. 1).
- Adjust depth stop 1 up to the stop screw on the revolving depth stop 15.
- Set the slidable scale needle on the depth stop 1 to the zero point of scale 3.
- Set the depth stop 1 to the desired milling depth and clamp it with the cam lever 17.
- Actuate the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2) to actuate a reverse stroke.

6.4.4 Fine adjustment of milling depth

If a delicate correction of the milling depth should become necessary, this is done by turning the fine adjustment 16 (Fig. 1). One turn of the adjusting nut causes a milling depth adjustment of 1 mm. The entire travel of the fine adjustment is approx. 10 mm.

6.5 Work instructions



Hold onto the machine with both hands during operation.

6.5.1 Plunge milling

A reduction plate reducing the tool opening to \emptyset 32 mm is mounted on the underside of the base plate 14 (Fig. 1). The reduction plate facilitates machining in angular wooden areas and reduces the risk of slipping.

If necessary, the reduction plate can be removed to the top.

During milling ensure that the workpiece is secured and the router is resting evenly against the workpiece with the base plate 14 and / or the limit stops on an as large as possible surface.

Mill large depths progressively.

Once you have set the milling cutter speed, firmly hold onto the machine with both hands and switch on the machine. Actuate the column clamping lever 18 (Fig. 2) and plunge the milling cutter into the material up to the stop with an even feed. Releasing the column clamping lever 18 locks the machine. Only mill in counter direction.

6.5.2 Milling with parallel guide fence

The parallel guide fence is used to accurately guide the machine along a straight workpiece edge (see Fig. 7). The parallel guide fence is included in the scope of supply.

Conversion:

- Push the guide rods 22 into the two openings of the base plate.
- Roughly set the parallel guide fence to the desired distance to the milling cutter and tighten the wing screws 23.
- Use knurled screw 24 to accurately set the distance to the milling cutter and then tighten the wing screws 25.

To provide a larger bearing surface, a stop web can be inserted into the parallel guide fence:

- Remove one of the two stop webs at the underside of the parallel guide fence.
- Insert the stop web into the device on the parallel guide fence intended for this (see Fig. 8). The second stop web serves as spare.

6.5.3 Milling with template guide

The template guides (Ø 20, 30 and 40 mm) can be used to mill shapes according to templates. The template guides are included in the scope of supply. After the reduction plate has been removed, the template guide 26 (Fig. 9) is inserted in the base plate 14 (Fig. 1), turned clockwise up to the stop and clamped with the wing screws. The template must have a large enough bearing surface to prevent the machine from tilting to the side. The template must be thicker than the collar length of the template guide.

In addition, it is possible to use a porter cable holding fixture for different template guides. This includes, for example, the application with the dovetail jig (Leigh) where it serves to hold the guide sleeve.

6.5.4 Milling with reduced speed

The speed reduction is used for edge machining crosswise to the wood grain to reduce heat generation and friction. Failure to use this can lead to a reduction of the milling cutter service life or to burn marks on the workpiece.

Press the speed reduction button 6 (Fig. 1) to reduce the speed (reduction by 30%). The speed reduction is reset by pressing the speed reduction button 6 again; the machine runs in normal operation again.

6.5.5 Milling with adapter sleeve

If an end milling cutter (diameter 6 mm or 1/4") is to be used for milling, an adapter sleeve must be used with open tool clamp. Push the adapter sleeve completely into the collet and push in the milling cutter up to the minimum clamping depth. Pay attention that the adapter sleeve is free of grease.

6.5.6 Milling with guide rail

When a guide rail is used, the groove in the machine's base plate is placed onto the guide web of the guide rail.

While doing so, the machine's base plate is projecting beyond the guide rail. Now use the extraction adapter for the guide rail that is included in the scope of supply to ensure safe guidance on the guide rail.

It is also possible to position the machine against the edge of the guide rail, opposite the splinter guard, and to guide it in this manner.

An extended working application with the guide rail is for instance the use of the milling adapter LO-FA for pocket milling. The milling adapter is an optional accessory (see chapter 10).

6.5.7 Milling with support foot

The support foot 27 (Fig. 9) can in addition be used for template milling. With the wing screw 12 (Fig. 1), the support foot can be set to a depth up to 30 mm to ensure secure guiding of the machine on different material thicknesses.

7 Service and maintenance

Danger



Pull the power plug during all service work.

MAFELL machines are designed to be low in maintenance.

The ball bearings used are greased for life. When the machine has been in operation for a longer period of time, we recommend to hand the machine in at an authorised MAFELL customer service shop for inspection.

7.1 Storage

Clean the machine thoroughly if the machine is not used for a longer period of time. Spray blank metal parts with a rust-proofing agent.

8 Visual signal indication of operating condition

The visual output signals on the LED display indicate the operating condition of the machine:

LED display	Operation / state of the machine
Blue (permanent)	Normal operation
	variable bar value / variable bar display
Blue (flashing)	Throttled operation
	To quit, press the speed reduction button again.
Red (flashing)	Cooling mode active
	The bar value corresponds to the expected remaining cooling mode run time. On reaching the cooling temperature, the machine is switched off and the display changes to permanent red.
Red (permanent), all bars are lit up in red	General error that can be eliminated by the operator:
	- Cooling mode completed
	- Excess temperature
	- Restart protection
	- Blocking switch-off
Display off	Defect at the machine
	Serious error or power failure.
	Take the machine to the MAFELL customer service repair shop or have it checked by a skilled electrician.

9 Troubleshooting



Danger

Determining the causes for existing defects and eliminating these always requires increased attention and caution. Pull the mains plug beforehand!

Some of the most frequent defects and their causes are listed in the following chart. In case of other defects, please contact your dealer or the MAFELL customer service directly.

Defect	Cause	Elimination
Machine cannot be switched on	No mains voltage	Check the power supply and/or press the main switch
	Carbon brushes worn	Take the machine to the MAFELL customer service repair shop or have it checked by a skilled electrician
Machine switches off	Mains failure	Ensure power supply, release
	Cooling mode completed	switch trigger and press again
Machine stops while milling	Excess temperature	Switch on machine and allow to cool in cooling mode
	No mains voltage	Check mains-side pre-fuse
	Defect at the machine Cause must be determined by the customer service.	Take the machine to the MAFELL customer service repair shop or have it checked by a skilled electrician.
	Overload switch-off	Switch the machine on again
Speed decreases during milling	Excessive chip removal	Reduce chip removal
	Feed rate too fast	Reduce feed
	Blunt milling cutter	Grind or replace milling cutter
Wrong speed	Wrong speed level set, speed reduction button is pressed (LED display flashes)	Adjust level and increase speed; adjust speed by means of speed button below the LED display
Excessive speed, soft start or speed control missing, braking no longer possible	Defective electronic system Cause must be determined by the customer service.	Take the machine to the MAFELL customer service repair shop or have it checked by a skilled electrician.
Unclean milling pattern	Blunt milling cutter	Grind or replace milling cutter
	Uneven feed, wrong speed	Mill with constant pressure and reduced feed, adjust speed
Burn marks on the milled surfaces	Milling cutter unsuitable for the work step or blunt, wrong speed, feed rate too low	Grind or replace milling cutter Adjust speed and feed

10 Optional accessories

- Adapter sleeve Ø 8 / Ø 6 mm
- Adapter sleeve Ø 8 / Ø 1/4 "
- LO-FA milling adapter
- Template guide Ø 17 mm
- Template guide Ø 24 mm
- Guide rails F80 (0.8 m long)
- Guide rails F 110 (1.10 m long)
- Guide rails F 160 (1.60 m long)
- Guide rails F 210 (2.10 m long)
- Guide rails F 310 (3.10 m long)
- Guide rails F80-LR
- Guide rails F160-LR
- Connecting piece F-VS
- Angle fence F-WA

11 Exploded drawing and spare parts list

The corresponding information in respect of spare parts can be found on our homepage: www.mafell.com

Order No. 207946 Order No. 207947 Order No. 207200 Order No. 209851 Order No. 209850 Order No. 204380 Order No. 204381 Order No. 204382 Order No. 204383 Order No. 204383 Order No. 207600 Order No. 207601 Order No. 2076357